
Page 1 of 7 

 

 

    

MINUTES OF THE WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE ALLAMUCHY TOWNSHIP COUNCIL                      

                                              HELD ON JULY 10, 2024 AT 6:30 P.M. 

 

 

The Township Council convened the workshop meeting in person at 6:30 P.M. on July 10, 2024. 

The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

A moment of silence was held at this time for personal intentions.   

 

The Municipal Clerk announced that adequate notice of the time, place, and manner of this in-person  

Council meeting has been provided in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act by:   

(1)  posting said notice on the municipal building bulletin board.  

(2)  emailing said notice to the press and all others who have requested it. 

(3) posting on the official Town website. 

 

1.    PRESENT:   Mayor Tuohy, Councilwoman Bonanno, Councilwoman Chamberlin, Councilman 

                          Fabula and Councilman Quinoa. 

                                        

                           Township Administrator Tatarenko was also present.   

 

                           Attorney Beilin was not present.                       

                      

2.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

  

      a.  Regular Meeting – June 26, 2024 as submitted. 

 

           Motion by Councilman Fabula, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin and approved on roll 

           call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.      
              

3.   MAYOR’S REPORT: 

 

 a.   State Health Benefits – Mayor Tuohy advised that she had received notification that the 

       State Health Benefits will be increasing 16%.  The resolution will be passed at the end of 

       July by the State.  

 

 ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 

 

 a.  Energy Audit – Mr. Tatarenko introduced John Tull, Director in Infrastructure at Facilities 

      Solution Group, LLC, (FSG) to review the energy audit that was prepared for the municipality. 

      Mr. Tatarenko advised that a spreadsheet was prepared by Mr. Tull which provides a 

      a breakdown of project costs, capital costs if the municipality replaces the equipment, 

      and revised project costs which is a combination of projected costs less available incentives. 

 

      John Tull, Facilities Solutions Group, was present and stated that FSG is nationwide 

      and one of the largest facility solutions providers in the country.  The material 

      is purchased directly from the factory and not a distributor.  Equipment purchased directly from  

      the factory accounts for a majority of the cost savings.  Mr. Tull reviewed his background  

      and previous projects completed for various other agencies that produced a cost savings for 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 7 

 

 

 

 

      these entities. 

 

      Mr. Tull advised that FSG works directly for utilities and develops an expertise with these 

      companies.  He stated that he came out a few months ago and looked at the HVAC system and  

      lighting equipment for municipally owned buildings.  He stated that overall, the systems are in 

      pretty good shape but the equipment is old and nearing the end of the equipment’s life cycle.  The    

      equipment is reasonably efficient but still old. In preparing the audit, it was determined that Lenox   

      products would not get the incentives over 50%.  Mr. Tull stated that he then went to Daikin 

      which is an industry leader in HVAC and is at the forefront of energy efficiency to partner with 

      them and utilize their equipment.  He was able to get the incentives up to almost 76% for town hall, 

      75.27% for the fire department and only 40% for the water/sewer department.  The water/sewer 

department has an oil-fired furnace and there is no way of getting efficiency up for that department  

      as fuel switching incentives are not allowed at this time. HVAC would not be done at the water and 

sewer department due to an oil-fired furnace at that location. There has been talk that this program  

      may change in the year 2025.   

 

      Mr. Tull added that another benefit of the utility program is that the Township could borrow up to 

$75,000 per utility account or the total amount of budget costs under $75,000.00. 

 

      Mr. Tull advised that another category that was looked at when the audit was done was code 

compliance.  The fire department is not code compliant with the intake and outtake air 

      system. The municipality would need to rectify the intake and outtake air system in accordance  

      with code as this system was not installed according to code. 

 

      Mr. Tull stated that the numbers presented are conservative as the thought process is based on an  

      8 hours per day operation. Obviously, the township buildings are operating more than 8 hours per day.   

      This plan should take care of 99% of lighting and HVAC needs of the municipality. 

 

      Mayor Tuohy questioned Mr. Tull as to whether or not he looked at the rescue squad building. 

 

      Mr. Tull advised that he did look at the rescue squad building.  This was a difficult location 

      as the HVAC equipment was high up in the ceiling. 

 

      Mr. Tatarenko stated that if the township were to do all of the upgrades it would costs over 

      $617,000.00.  With the incentives being provided of just over $450,000.00, the township costs 

      would be approximately a little over $167,000.00.  There is also an option for zero percent interest 

      over 5 years or a capital purchase.  The financing options would need to be reviewed. 

       

      Mayor Tuohy stated that a lot of money is being spent on repairs to the existing heating and 

      air conditioning systems - especially in the firehouse.    

    

      Mr. Tull advised that repairs start to snowball - starting with fans then compressors then  

      electronics.   Electronic repairs are not cost effective.  The township is at the right place to 

      replace the existing equipment. 

 

      Councilman Fabula questioned what type of warranty is provided on the equipment being  

      installed. 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 7 

 

 

 

 

 

      Mr. Tull advised that the equipment comes with a standard 5-year manufacturer warranty. FSG 

      provides a one-year complete wrap around warranty on labor and parts for both lighting and  

      HVAC.  The lighting is a ten-year warranty.  FSG looks for solid value companies that provide a  

      ten-year warranty. 

 

      Councilwoman Bonanno questioned where the incentives come from. 

  

      Mr. Tull stated that the Public Utility Commission has given each of the utilities a mandate to  

      reduce energy. It is actually cheaper to pay people to use less energy than to build additional 

      infrastructure to provide more energy.  There is a fund on the utility bill that is divided up – a  

      Public Benefit Charge.  This money is distributed to utilities. 

 

      Councilwoman Bonanno questioned if the maintenance savings is based on actuals or  

      estimates. 

 

      Mr. Tull advised estimates.  The savings could be significantly higher.  Fifteen years is where 

      the equipment starts to fail.  The equipment really goes bad after twenty years. 

 

      Councilwoman Chamberlin questioned what the township would actually be acquiring. 

 

      Mr. Tull advised that nine (9) pieces of equipment are needed at the fire house.  The air 

      conditioning units for town hall plus the air handle units in the attic space would also be 

      replaced.  FSG would also be installing demand control ventilation which controls the amount 

      of fresh air required in a building based on usage and needs.  He stated that the municipal 

      building has a gas fired furnace which is already reasonably efficient but the gas furnace 

      would be replaced with a more efficient gas furnace. 

 

      The issue of solar panels was discussed.  The water/sewer department has solar panels that 

      are in need of repair.  Mr. Tull advised that his company could assist the municipality 

      with solar panel upgrades/repairs. 

 

      Councilwoman Chamberlin questioned how do incentives work. 

 

      Mr. Tull stated that the township could assign the incentives to his company.  Once the 

      municipality signs off on the completion of the project then JCP&L issues the check to FSG.  

      If the township finances or uses capital monies it would cost the township approximately  

      $167,000.00 for the new equipment. 

       

      Mr. Tatarenko stated that whatever is not covered under the financing would be payable to FSG 

      by the municipality. 

   

      Mr. Tull agreed and stated that the the best time to pay for, service and repair the systems is in the 

winter months.  This is the most cost-effective time of year for air conditioning repairs and maintenance.  

He added that money needs to be spent every year to maintain the equipment in  

      order for the equipment to run efficiently. 

 

      Mayor Tuohy questioned if the lighting was looked at and if there were any violations that need to  

       

 

 



Page 4 of 7 

 

 

 

 

 

      be corrected ahead of time. 

      

      Mr. Tull stated that he did not look at the emergency lighting. The emergency lighting may be 

      the only fixtures that may not be in compliance. 

 

      Mayor Tuohy advised that the emergency lighting is included in the annual inspection that 

      is done by the Mount Olive Fire Official’s office.   

 

      Councilman Fabula questioned if the lights in the municipal building parking lot was included 

      in the energy audit.  

 

      Mr. Tull advised yes, and these lights would also be changed to LED lighting.  The ball field 

      lights were not looked at since those types of lighting would not be good on incentives.  The 

      ballfield lights would be expensive to upgrade – it would cost approximately $2,300.00 per 

      light plus installation. The dog park lights could have a Step Dimming system installed which 

      includes a sensor.  This system would allow the lights to be adaptable to the usage and could 

      be controlled for security lighting just as well.  JCP&L no longer has exterior lighting incentives. 

      He suggested that the municipality plan for the expense of the ballfield lights because it will be 

      a sizeable expense.  He would look at the park lighting if the mayor and council wishes him to do  

      so. 

 

      Councilman Fabula stated that since the water/sewer department has an oil furnace and there 

      are no incentives offered, would it hurt if the municipality waits on doing the upgrades to that 

      department.  He inquired that if the township does the upgrades now and then incentives come out 

      in 2025 will this have a negative impact on the municipality.  

         

      Mr. Tull advised that there was conversation that fuel switching incentives will be available in 

      2025. 

 

      Mayor Tuohy stated that the area in question is not a big area, but it is the desire of 

      the township to eliminate the fuel oil tank in the near future.  

 

      Mr. Tull added that incentives for one project cannot exceed 50%.  Incentives on a whole 

      project is eligible for 80%.  He suggested that the municipality hold off on the water/sewer  

      upgrades until maybe around November.  He does not see any risk in holding off to see if the 

      furnace could be included.  

 

      Councilman Fabula questioned what the time frame would be to start replacing the equipment.  

 

      Mr. Tull advised that most of the material is on the shelf.  The fixtures would be a 4-6 week 

      lead time.  If the contract was signed as of right now work would begin in two months. 

      The HVAC equipment is readily available.  The project should commence in the Fall, 2024.   

 

      Mr. Tatarenko questioned if the labor is done by FSG. 

     

      Mr. Tull stated that the lighting is done by FSG employees. The other work is subcontracted 

      out.  FSG partnered with D&B Building Solutions to perform the HVAC work. 

 

 

 



Page 5 of 7 

 

 

 

         

 

      Mayor Tuohy stated that she would like to move forward with the project but a meeting  

      with the Chief Financial Officer to discuss financing options is required.  Financing may be the  

      best solution since a good rate is offered. 

 

       Councilwoman Bonanno stated that financing would be an operating expense as capital monies 

       would not be.  Financing would be a monthly payment. 

 

      Mr. Tatarenko advised that if capital monies were used this would cause the project to be over 

      the bid threshold.  FSG is on the National Cooperative purchasing which would allow the project to  

      move forward without competitive bidding.  He stated that he will work with the CFO on  

      the financing options. 

 

      Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Quinoa, carried to accept the 

      energy audit as presented by FSG and to proceed with a contract subject to review by the 

      municipal attorney and chief financial officer.  Roll call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons 

      Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy. 

 

4.   ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 

 

      a.  Drake Matter – Mayor Tuohy advised that the resolution on the Drake matter was done by the  

           State Agricultural Board.  The attorney is in talks with Warren County Farmland Preservation 

           as to how the farmland preservation deed restriction will be enforced. 

 

      b.  Proposed Rails to Trail Property – Mayor Tuohy advised that the municipal attorney spoke to  

           the administrator of the estate whose property borders the proposed Rails to Trails property. 

           The administrator is willing to give the property to the municipality but requested that the  

           township pay her attorney fees. The estate administrator also requested that the State does 

           not have any involvement with this property at all.  

 

           Mayor Tuohy advised that according to the municipal attorney, the other properties that  

           appeared on the tax sale list could be offered for sale to the adjoining property owners. 

 

5.   COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

      a.  Budget/Finance Committee Report – No report. 

 

6.   CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

      a.  JCP&L – Societal Benefits Charge Rate Increase/Adjustment 

      b.  United Food and Commercial Workers Union – Cannabis Industry 

 

           Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to accept the 

           correspondence presented.  AYES – All in favor. NAYES – None. ABSTAIN – None. 

           ABSENT – None.      

  

7.   MUNICIPAL CLERK’S REPORT – No report. 

 

 

 

 



Page 6 of 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.   PUBLIC SESSION: 

 

      a.  Charles Fineran, Allamuchy, NJ was presented and commended the mayor and council for 

           the excellent job that was done on the energy audit.  He stated that the numbers sounded 

           good and it seems like the project is taking place at the right time.   

 

           Mr. Tatarenko suggested that going forward, the township should have maintenance 

           agreements in place on the the new equipment. 

 

           Councilman Fabula agreed with Mr. Tatarenko and also recommended the project include a 

           SCADA system.  The SCADA system stands for Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition,  

           which is used for controlling, monitoring, and analyzing the equipment.  

 

9.   ORDINANCES – First Reading/Introduction 

 

      None. 

 

10.  ORDINANCES – Second Reading/Public Hearing 

 

       None. 

 

11.  RESOLUTIONS 

 

       None. 

 

12.  NEW BUSINESS/OTHER BUSINESS 

 

       None. 

 

13.  OLD BUSINESS 

 

       a.  Internet Service for Non-Serviced Areas 

       b.  W/S Capital Improvements Grant Submission – The project has been authorized 

            to proceed with the bid process. 

       c.  Ordinance(s) Review 

       d.  Sand Filter Replacement Project 

       e.  Open Space and Recreation Plan – Land Use Board will begin the public hearing process. 

       f.   Rails to Trails Project Update  

 

      Councilwoman Chamberlin wanted to mention that she did not receive the alert notification 

      regarding the active shooter incident that occurred back in June in Independence Township.  

      She stated that other individuals did receive the alert and questioned the process as to how these  

      alerts are received. 

 

      Mayor Tuohy stated that she received the alert on her phone.   

 

       

 



Page 7 of 7 

 

 

 

 

 

      Councilwoman Chamberlin inquired as to what was the protocol in the event of an emergency. 

      She questioned if there is a way to notify the Township residents. 

 

      Mayor Tuohy advised that there is a system in place.  The notifications are done 

      by OEM Coordinator Berkenbush. 

 

      Councilman Quinoa stated that the State police contacted the General Manager for PVPOA  

      and made him aware of the situation.  He questioned that if the township is notified is there a  

      system in place to notify the residents. 

 

      Mayor Tuohy advised that she would speak to Mr. Berkenbush as to the procedure(s) in place for 

      emergency situations.  She will report back at the next meeting with their discussion. 

                

     14.   PAYMENT OF BILLS (ATTACHMENT) 

             Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to approve 

             the bill list as presented subject to review by the Finance Department. 

     

             Roll call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy. 

             
      15.   PUBLIC SESSION 

 

              There were no comments from the public and the public session was closed.   

 

 16.   RESOLUTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION:  None.  

 

   17.   ADJOURNMENT – 7:33 P.M. 

 

        There being no further business, motion by Councilman Fabula, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin,  

        carried to adjourn at 7:33 p.m. Roll call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, 

        Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Anne Marie Tracy, Municipal Clerk 

 

 

Rosemary Tuohy, Mayor 


